ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 28, 2011
1:30 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Denni s Egan

Senator Johnny Ellis
Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 27
"An Act relating to flame retardants and to the manufacture,
sale, and distribution of products containing flanme retardants;
relating to bioaccunulative toxic chemicals; and providing for
an effective date.”

- MOVED CSSB 27(HSS) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 52

"An Act requiring health care insurers to provide coverage for
treatment of nental health conditions, and requiring parity
between health care insurance coverage for nental health

al coholism and substance abuse benefits and other nedical care
benefits; elimnating different treatnent for nental health
conditions from the mninmum benefits of the state health
i nsurance plan; renoving an exclusion for nental health services
or alcohol or drug abuse from the definition of 'basic health
care services' in the law relating to health naintenance
or gani zat i ons; repealing a definition of ' ment al heal th
benefits' that excludes treatnent of substance abuse or chem cal
dependency; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 27
SHORT TI TLE: FLAME RETARDANTS AND TOXI C CHEM CALS

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -1- February 28, 2011



SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSK

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) HSS, FIN

02/ 21/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 21/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 21/ 11 (S) M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 28/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 52
SHORT TI TLE. MENTAL HEALTH CARE | NSURANCE BENEFI T
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) HSS, L&C, FIN
02/ 28/ 11 (S) HSS AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

KARLA HART, Staff to Senator W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned changes in CSSB 27.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSK

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 27.

TOM OBERMVEYER, Staff to Senator Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 52 for the sponsor.

DENNI S BAI LEY, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Services

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 52.

BRENDA KNAPP, Treatnment and Recovery Program Adm nistrator
Di vi sion of Behavioral Health

Department of Health and Social Services

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding fiscal note for
SB 52.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 28, 2011



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 30: 00 PM

CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health and Social Services
Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m Present at the
call to order were Senators Egan, Meyer, and Chair Davis.

SB  27- FLAME RETARDANTS AND TOXI C CHEM CALS

1: 31: 07 PM
CHAIR DAVIS announced the first order of business would be SB
27.

SENATOR EGAN noved to adopt the proposed comrittee substitute to
SB 27, CSSB 27( ), |abeled 27-LS0300\B, as the working docunent.

CHAI R DAVI S obj ected for discussion purposes.

1:31:12 PM
SENATOR BILL WELECHOMSKI, sponsor of SB 27, thanked the
committee for hearing the bill and said his staff would review

t he changes in the CS.

KARLA HART, staff to Senator Welechowski, said the changes to
SB 27 from version M to version B begin on page 1. The first
change makes enforcenent easier by clarifying that the limt of
PBDE by mass applies to each individual conponent.

1:32: 04 PM
SENATOR ELLI S j oi ned the neeti ng.

M5. HART further explained that no conponent of any product may
contain nore than 0.1 percent of bromnes. The second change
page 1, section (c) adds other external conponents to electronic
appliances. This includes things |ike toasters, blenders, and
m crowaves, and ensures that anything that people have physica
contact with would be free of PBDEs. On page 3, the CS renoves
the retailer assistance conponent, the review by departnents,
and the list of +toxic chemcals. These are replaced wth
required participation by DEC in the interstate chenica
cl eari nghouse. The clearinghouse is now up and running. In this
way, DEC could buy a share of a toxicologist instead of a whole
departnent, and share the know edge of many st ates.

CHAI R DAVI S asked if section 18.31. 660 was new.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 3- February 28, 2011



M5. HART affirmed that it was. The new version changed "nmay
participate” to "shall participate.” The CS adds an immedi ate
effective date for interstate clearinghouse participation. Those
changes were done to clarify the bill, and also to reduce the
fiscal notes.

CHAIR DAVIS asked if there was a new fiscal note.

M5. HART answered that staff at DEC was preparing a new fiscal

note, but the CS has to be adopted before they will release it.
The current fiscal note is roughly $159,000. This recognizes
that the toxicologist position will probably be cut. The prior

note was al nost $400,000. The DSHS fiscal note should be zero
and the public safety note says zero.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI, sponsor of SB 27, said he doesn't believe
a toxicologist is needed, so the real cost is only the cost of
joining the interstate clearinghouse.

CHAIR DAVIS said this could be taken wup in the Finance
Comm ttee.

SENATOR MEYER asked if the state associations of firefighters
and fire chiefs have taken a position.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said they have indicated verbally that they
support the bill.

M5. HART stated they should be sending a letter of support, and
they did support the bill last year, and indicated a wllingness
to pass a resolution in support this year. The State Fire
Marshal | gave verbal support but has sone concerns, because his
job is not to protect us fromtoxics, his job is to fight fires
and protect the public fromfires.

1:39: 27 PM

SENATOR MEYER said it would be hel pful to have sonething show ng
their support. There is one letter froma retired fire fighter
opposing the bill.

M5. HART said that person has testified against the bill each
year. She noted that their office has also received letters of
support from active firefighters, and the Al aska Chapter of the
Anerican Fire Fighters Association is also in favor, and has
witten letters in past years. The State Association of Fire
Chi efs has al so supported the bill in past years. Possibly there
is sone fatigue with repeatedly passing resol utions.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -4- February 28, 2011



1: 40: 54 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked how SB 27 woul d be enforced.

M5. HART responded that initial enforcenment would be through
whol esalers and distributors, not retailers. The law wll be
publ i shed and news will spread quickly. Many states al ready have
these laws. Wholesalers and distributors have to disclose if
there are any PBDEs in the products they sell. There is no
enf orcenent conponent in the budget. Mjor retailers are already
conplying in many other states, and enforcenent has not been a
bi g issue.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his understanding is that nmany
manufacturers are conplying. Those not conplying are from
over seas.

CHAI R DAVI S noted the CS was adopted, and would go to Finance.

SENATOR EGAN noved to report CS for SB 27 from commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and soon to be attached fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSSB 27(HSS) noved from Senate Health
and Social Services Standing Commttee.

1: 44: 26 PM
Brief at-ease from 1:44 - 1:45

SB  52- MENTAL HEALTH CARE | NSURANCE BENEFI T

1: 45: 29 PM
CHAI R DAVI S announced the next order of business would be SB 52.

TOM OBERMEYER, Staff to Senator Davis, said that SB 52 anends
several sections of Alaska's health insurance code to require
that health care insurers provide full "parity,"” i.e., equal
i nsurance coverage, or the sanme financial and treatnent coverage
for mental health conditions, including alcohol and substance
abuse, as other physical illnesses. This bill expands on state
conpliance under HB 222 in 2009 with newy enacted federal
parity law, the "Paul Wellstone and Peter Donenici Mental Health
Parity and Addiction Equity Act" of 2008. That Act also applies
to all children's health insurance prograns and becane effective
April 1, 2009.

1:49: 30 PM

MR. OBERMEYER said that historically, health insurers have been
reluctant to cover nental health and substance abuse services on

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 5- February 28, 2011



the sanme basis as general nedical and surgical services. During
the 1980s nany states required insurers to provide coverage for
mental health services and to offer freedom of choice anong
provi ders. However, concerns about the adequacy of this coverage
persi sted because insurers inposed increased cost sharing or
restrictive benefit limts. This led to nore federal and state
intervention on behalf of consuners. Wile current federal |aw
does not nmandate that group plans nust provide nental health
coverage, if they do, they nust provide the sanme financial and
treatment coverage offered for other physical illnesses. This
bill differs from federal law in that it does mandate that "a
health care insurer which offers, issues for delivery, delivers,
or renews a health care insurance plan to an enployer or
i ndi vidual on a group or individual basis shall provide coverage
for treatment of a nmental health condition.”

CHAIR DAVI S asked if he could provide a sectional analysis.
MR. OBERMEYER said that Section 1 prohibits a health care

insurer from placing a greater financial burden on an insured
for the treatment of alcoholism or drug abuse than for other

medi cal care, including Jlimts on paynent, deduct i bl es,
copaynent, or ot her cost sharing requirenents, nmet hods,
prenotification requirenents, limting or excluding coverage or

services, or denying coverage because treatnment was interrupted
or not conpleted. It defines a "health care insurance plan" and
"health care insurance."

Section 2 requires health care insurers to provide coverage for
treatment of nental health conditions. It requires that health
care insurance provisions are applied to the treatnent of nental
health conditions in the sanme way as those health care insurance
conditions are applied to other nedical care.

Section 3 is an editorial anmendnent. Section 4 renoves
l[imtations on nental health benefits from ACH A high risk
pl ans. Section 5 renoves a 50 percent copaynent requirenment for
mental health services under an ACH A plan. Section 6 renoves a
provi sion under an ACHI A plan that requires certain expenses for
the treatnent of nmental and nervous conditions be paid at the
rate of 50 percent. Section 7 renoves the exclusion for nental
health services or services for alcohol or drug abuse from the
definition of "basic health care services" which applies to
health maintenance organi zations. Section 8 changes the
definition of nedical care and includes nmental health care and
care for alcoholism and substance abuse in the definition of
"medical care" for insurance purposes. Section 9 repeals the

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 6- February 28, 2011



definition of "nedical and surgical benefits" applicable to
heal th insurance, which excludes nental health benefits. It also
repeals the definition of "mental health benefits,” which allows
the term to be defined in a health care insurance plan, and
which excludes treatnment of substance abuse or chem cal
dependency. Section 10 states that the act applies to insurance
issued after the effective date of the act. Section 11 states
that the act applies to insurance issued after the effective
date of the act. Section 11 states an effective date.

1: 55: 00 PM

MR. OBERMEYER explained that SB 52 tries to recognize that
mental health conditions nmust be defined in the DSM manual, and
he asked DSHS to confirm that those disorders are defined there.
From a policy standpoint, SB 52 recognizes that these conditions
should be treated under health plans the sanme as other nedica
conditions. He noted that DU wellness court clients have been
found to be nedically (chemcally) dependent. It is only fair to
treat these conditions the sane as other conditions. Treating
them ot herwi se is discrimnatory.

SENATOR MEYER asked if he had any idea what this would cost
smal | busi ness.

MR. OBERVEYER answered that the fiscal note indicates sone
anticipated costs. He assunmes that if law were put into effect,
fewer enployers mght offer insurance or fewer enployees m ght
enroll. They don't have good nunbers, but other states have done
this. There nust be sone ability to justify the additional
costs, because 46 states have sonme type of parity |[aws,

including 28 that require full parity for nental heal th
benefits.
CHAIR DAVIS said we don't know how much it wll cost snall

busi ness. But we do know that parity is possible. In the |ong
run it may end up saving noney. W should provide parity for
people with nental illness sinply because it's the right thing
to do.

SENATOR MEYER sai d he did not disagree with that.
CHAIR DAVIS said there is no way of knowng the cost. Mny
enpl oyers who don't have to provide this coverage are already

doing it.

SENATOR EGAN noted that if a snall business participates
al ready, the bill would not affect them

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -7- February 28, 2011



MR. OBERMEYER said if a private conpany has a plan in effect

now, the bill says they would have to have full parity. If they
don't have a plan now and they elect not to have one, then they
are not required to have nental health parity. This bill says

you nmust have full parity for nental health coverage if you have
a pl an.

2:03:09 PM

SENATOR MEYER said the federal Mental Health Parity Addiction
Act says any enployer with fewer than 50 enpl oyees is exenpt. SB
52 says any enployer with nore than 5 nust participate, and he
wonder ed why that nunber was chosen

MR. OBERMEYR said he was not sure.

DENNI S BAI LEY, Attorney, Legislative Legal Services, said he
doesn't know where the nunber came from or why it is in the
bill.

CHAIR DAVIS stated, "W can see we have work to do on this
bill." She said she was not sure what the nunber should be, but
the i ssue needs to be addressed.

SENATOR MEYER asked if substance abuse and nental health are
typically | unped together.

MR. OBERMEYER said that DSHS has experts on this question, and
the DSM nmanual defines these conditions. Al coholism and
subst ance abuse are now consi dered nental health di sorders.

SENATOR MEYER asked if this bill would be able to distinguish
bet ween nental health clains and substance abuse cl ai ns.

MR. OBERMEYER said they would both be included under the sane
definition.

DENNI S BAI LEY said that he did not have a definitive answer, but
| ooking at information on DSM standards he thinks there are
separate designations of a disorder that are alcohol related
versus other disorders that are non-al cohol related. They are a
sub-category of nental illness.

2:09: 29 PM

CHAIR DAVIS said there was soneone present from the D vision of
Behavi oral Heal t h.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 8- February 28, 2011



2:10: 32 PM

BRENDA KNAPP, Treatnment and Recovery Program Adm nistrator,
Division of Behavioral Health (DBH), Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services (DSHS) said her purpose was to answer questions
on the fiscal note. DSHS submitted a zero fiscal note. The DBH
recogni zes the value of having insurance coverage for nental
heal th and substance abuse issues. Looking at the inpact of this
parity bill wth regard to a fiscal note, research did not
indicate a significant cost increase or savings.

2:11:51 PM
SENATOR DYSON j oi ned the neeti ng.

SENATOR MEYER asked if SB 52 would have nuch inpact to the
state, and noted that inpacts would be nostly to smal
busi nesses, whet her anything under 50 or over 5 enpl oyees.

M5. KNAPP answered that DSHS would not track that. They woul d be
tracki ng Medicaid expenditures, reduced need for treatnent paid
by DSHS, increased need for treatnment facilities and oversight.
The bill would not inpact themdirectly at this tine.

SENATOR MEYER sai d you mght actually see a decrease.

M5. KNAPP answered that she was not an insurance expert.

SENATOR MEYER asked if the Division of |Insurance has taken a
posi tion.

M5. KNAPP answered she was not aware that they had.

CHAIR DAVIS said they wusually remain neutral, but we can ask
that they cone forward.

SENATOR MEYER said he was referring to Linda Hall.

CHAIR DAVIS said the commttee could ask her to cone to the next
heari ng.

2:15: 55 PM
SENATOR EGAN asked if a small business does not have health
insurance for their enployees, would this bill require them to

provi de i nsurance.

CHAIR DAVIS said if you have a plan you have to do things, but
the bill is not saying you have to get a plan.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 9- February 28, 2011



SENATOR DYSON noted on page 2, line 19, there would seem to be
one factor that makes enployers reluctant to have parity because
a diagnosis of nental illness is nore subjective. The bill says
an insurer may not wuse or require notification or a second
opinion. He stated he would enjoy knowi ng why a second opinion
was excl uded.

CHAIR DAVI S said they could list this as an area of concern. She
said they would ook into this area.

SENATOR DYSON asked about the neaning of fraternal benefit
society as used in SB 52.

DENNI' S BAILEY said that a fraternal benefit society is a group
that provides benefits for its nenbers, such as the Mose Lodge
or the Elks Lodge, where they mmy give sonme insurance type
benefits to their nmenbers. These are categorized separately from
a normal health insurer.

SENATOR DYSON said sone unions, including those representing
public enpl oyees, have their own health benefit plans, and asked
if they would be required to conply.

MR. BAILEY said he had sone ideas on the question, but felt it
shoul d be directed to the Division of Insurance.

CHAI R DAVI S announced that SB 52 would be held in commttee for
further consideration.

2:22:11 PM
There being no further business to come before the commttee
Chair Davis adjourned the neeting at 2:22 p. m

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -10- February 28, 2011



